HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 14, 2003
1:41 P. M

TAPE HFC 03 — 57, Side A
TAPE HFC 03 - 57, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:41 P.M

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Harris, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Bill Stoltze
Representative Ji m Wit aker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative M ke Chenaul t

ALSO PRESENT

Wl liam Corbus, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Revenue; John
MacKi nnon, Deputy  Comm ssi oner, H ghways and Public
Facilities, Ofice of the Comm ssioner, Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities; Kevin R tchie, Al aska
Muni ci pal League, Juneau; Li nda Syl vester, Staff,
Representative Bruce Wyhrauch; Mark  Johnson, Chi ef,
Community Health and Enmergency Medical Services, Departnent
of Health and Social Services

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Robynn W1l son, Tax Auditor, Department of Revenue; M ke
Fol kerts, Recreational Boating Safety, U S. Coast GQuard,
Chuck Hosack, Deputy Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles,
Departnent of Adm nistration

SUMVARY

HB 93 An Act relating to boating safety; repealing secs.
3, 5 7, 9, 11, 14, 16, 18, 20, 23, 26, 27, and
30, ~ch. 28, SLA 2000; and providing for an
effective date.

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/ 14/ 03 1:41 PM



HB 93 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 156 An Act increasing the notor fuel tax and repealing
the special tax rates on blended fuels; and
providing for an effective date.

HB 156 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#HB156
HOUSE BILL NO. 156

An Act increasing the notor fuel tax and repealing the
special tax rates on blended fuels; and providing for
an effective date.

Co-Chair WlIllians noted that it was not his intention to
nove HB 156 from Commttee at this neeting.

W LLI AM CORBUS, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, st ated
that under the authority of article Ill, section 18, of the
Al aska Constitution, HB 93 wuld increase the State’'s
hi ghway notor fuel tax rate from 8 cents a gallon to 20
cents a gallon and repeal the special rate for gasohol.

Comm ssi oner Corbus noted that in order for Al aska s econony
to grow and diversify, the State nust expand and inprove the
transportation infrastructure. Al aska nust adequately fund
hi ghway construction and mai ntenance activities. Currently,
Al aska spends nearly $50 mllion per year in general fund
dollars to match the Federal H ghway Capital Program and
nearly $60 mllion dollars per year on nmi ntenance.

At the current eight cents per gallon, Al aska s highway
notor fuel tax rate is now the lowest in the nation. Even
after the proposed increase, thirty-eight states would have
hi gher rates, and Al aska’s fuel tax would be at the 20-cent
national average. Had the tax rate been indexed for
inflation when it was initiated in 1961, it would be nearly
two and a half tines the rate proposed in the bill

Comm ssioner Corbus pointed out that wunder existing |aw,
revenue from the notor fuel tax used on roads and hi ghways
is deposited in a highway fuel tax account in the general
fund. That fund is available for mai nt enance  and
construction of highway projects and ferries.

HB 156 woul d del ete AS 43. 40. 010(a) (4) and AS
43.40.010(b)(4), which provide a special tax rate for
bl ended fuel . Wrking with industry and private citizens,
Alaska no longer requires the use of oxygenated fuels to
neet air quality standards. However, the U. S. Environnenta

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 14/ 03 1:41 PM



Protection Agency requires that the State be able to rapidly
re-inpose a requirenent for the use of oxy fuels should the
air quality deteriorate. The proposal represents a user-
pays approach to expanding and inproving the transportation
i nfrastructure.

Representative Foster pointed out that since the revenue
woul d be used for inprovenents of the roads and highways,
would the village areas be exenpt from the notor fuel tax
since there are no roads in those areas. Comm ssi oner
Corbus advised that Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities would need to respond to that concern.

Co-Chair Harris observed that there are a nunber of npbdes of
transportation throughout the State such as the Al aska
Mari ne Hi ghway system and the associated truckers, which an
increase in fuel tax would hit hard. He asked about the
“fairness” of the proposal. Commi ssi oner Corbus could not
responded to those issues.

Vice-Chair Meyer inquired if it were possible that the
proposed legislation could hurt the State’s econony. He
noted that the trucking industry currently works on a “thin”
margi n.  Conm ssi oner Corbus acknow edged that the proposed
| egi sl ati on woul d create an increased cost in doing business
for the transportation industry. However, he added that the
consequences of not addressing the current fiscal concerns
are nore serious than those costs.

Vice-Chair Meyer asked if the cars now using natural gas
woul d be exenpt. Comm ssioner Corbus did not know.

Representati ve Hawker pointed out the Governor's opposition
to the House Transportation version of the bill. He asked
what specific changes were needed to warrant support.
Comm ssi oner Corbus explained that version does not create

the immediate revenues needed by the State. The
transportation version would create no revenue for FY04 and
only a small amount for FYO5. He reiterated concerns

regardi ng the cash flow

Representative Mses asked if the Admnistration would
support an increase to sixteen cents a gallon, giving eight
cents per gallon back to the nunicipalities to maintain

their roads. Comm ssioner Corbus responded that the
Adm nistration's position is that the State needs enhanced
revenues and | ower expenditures. |If the State can determ ne
a way to hold the deficit at a point outlined by the
Governor, then the Admnistration wll be receptive to
changes.

Co-Chair Harris asked if Comm ssioner Corbus was referring
to the section of the bill which would not take effect
unless a Constitutional anmendnent was added addressing a

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/ 14/ 03 1:41 PM



dedi cated fund. Commi ssi oner Corbus acknow edged that was
correct.

Co-Chair Harris questioned if the Departnent had consi dered
an increase to the nmarine fuel tax as a revenue source for
assunm ng the small boat harbors. Comm ssioner Corbus noted
the enphasis behind HB 156, attenpts to pay for highway
mai nt enance costs. He added that the fuel tax for marine
vessel s woul d be a different consideration.

Co-Chair Harris clarified that the enphasis of the
Adm nistration is to place sone noney into highway
mai nt enance, replacing general funds in that category wth

ot her funds. In that situation, it would be a tax increase
and a decrease on the anount of the draw to the
Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR). Comm ssi oner Cor bus
agr eed.

Representative Joul e understood that the Adm nistration does
not support HB 156 being tied to another constitutional
dedi cated fund anendnent. He asked if the Admnistration
woul d support dedicated funds outside of the bill
Comm ssioner Corbus replied that he did not know the
Adm nistration's position regarding that concern. He
offered to find out and get back to Conm ttee nenbers.

ROBYNN W LSON, TAX AUDI TOR, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, responded
to the question from Representative Foster about the
exenption of the village areas fromthe tax. She clarified
that for off-road use, the user would be entitled to a
refund. Under present law, the off-road user is entitled to
six cents of the eight cents per gallon; under the proposed
| egislation, the user would be entitled to a discounted
price per gallon.

Representative Joul e asked about the eligibility process for
the rebate, collecting receipts throughout the year. He
inquired the rebate anobunt expected to be received for the
twenty-cent gas tax.

Ms. WIlson explained that the purchaser would have to
collect their receipts and submt them as often as was
convenient for them throughout the year. They could file
once a nonth or yearly; there is no statutory requirenent
regarding how often they nust file as long as it is that

sane one-year period. The proposed version of the bill
offers a refund of eighteen cents per twenty cents paid
The net effect will be the sane as the anount currently

being paid by the user.

Representative Joule asked if the age and/or type of the
vehicle would matter if they were classified as off road
vehicles. M. WIson responded that the age or type of the
vehicle does not matter except that the vehicle nust be

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 14/ 03 1:41 PM



| icensed to not be used on public ways. She added that in
sone of the nore renpbte areas, no requirenent exists that
the vehicle be licensed and that absolutely, the off-road
refund woul d be granted.

Representative Joule questioned if nmany people had pursued
getting reinbursenent on the tax paid. Ms. WIlson replied
that the clains are sonewhat "spotty". She added, it is
difficult to quantify because the wuser can accunmulate
recei pts for extended periods of tine before sending them
in. She did not have specific information.

Co-Chair WIliams requested further information regarding
sharing of tax revenue anong the municipalities.

JOHAN MACKI NNON, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, H GAVWAYS AND PUBLI C
FACI LI TI ES, CFFICE OF THE COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION & PUBLIC FACILITIES, pointed out that idea
had been suggested by the Alaska Minicipal League (AWM),
whi ch he thought would be a policy call of the House and
Senat e. M. MacKi nnon did not believe that t he
Adm ni stration woul d support the idea.

Since 1991, when the legislation was passed on a national

|l evel, there were federal highway funds to be used on
muni ci pal roads, an ability granted to Puerto R co and
Al aska. No other state in the Union was allowed that
option. In 1991, when the program first started, there was
$200 thousand dollars put into the federal highway fund,
federal gas tax for the nunicipal roads. In 2002, the
amount was over $72 nmllion dollars. M.  MacKi nnon

enphasi zed that there has been a significant increase of
federal noney put into nunicipal roads.

Representative Croft inquired about the refund for those
Al askans living rurally. M. WIson explained that there is
a form available on the Departnment’s web site; otherw se,
the Departnent can mail out the forns upon request. She
poi nted out the five cents per gallon marine tax.

Representative Croft wunderstood that the federal highway
noney was to be used for construction not maintenance. M.
MacKi nnon expl ained that was technically correct, however,
in practice that is not the way it happens. There is a fine
| ine between what is construction and what are maintenance
costs. Sone State prograns use federal construction nonies.

Co-Chair Harris questioned the "fairness" of the proposed
|l egislation to the Al aska Marine Hi ghway system and the
trucki ng industry. M. MacKinnon did not believe that the
tax would apply to the nmarine highway, as he did not think
that the State could tax a State entity and that the
| egi sl ation does exenpt State and federal agencies from

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/ 14/ 03 1:41 PM



payi ng. M. MacKinnon wunderstood that there was an
anendnent that would apply to the Al aska Rail road.

Co- Chai r Harris asked i f t he Adm ni stration was
contenplating an increase to the marine fuel tax in order to
hel p communities take over the mai ntenance and operations of
t he boat harbors. M. MacKi nnon advised that at present,
the Admnistration is not | ooki ng at t hat . The
Adm nistration is considering the |ongstanding program of
boat harbors, rebuilding and bringing them up to standard
and then transferring the maintenance and operations to the
muni ci palities.

Representative Stoltze noted that he had questions for the
Department of Education & Early Devel opnent regardi ng pupi
transportation. He commented that the |egislation would add
costs to that concern. Representative Stoltze requested
that the Departnent of Education & Early Devel opnent be
present at the next neeting.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer understood that the Departnent of Education
& Early Devel opment would be exenpt from the |egislation.
Representative Stoltze pointed out the nunber of private
contractors involved with pupil transportation noving.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer asked if natural gas burning fuel would be
exenpt . M. MacKinnon believed it would be exenpt. He
offered to get back to the Commttee regardi ng that concern.
Ms. WIson added that there is currently an exenption in the
notor fuel tax law, which exenpts |iquefied petrol eum gas.

Representative Foster comented that the general fund
portion of the Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities budget last year was $97 mllion dollars. He
asked how much would the eight cents per gallon raise. M.
MacKi nnon understood that it would raise approximtely $28
mllion dollars.

Representative Stoltze inquired if there was a concept for
“kicking” back to the nunicipalities and how it would be
det er m ned. Ms. WI1son explained that the manner in which
current statute is witten, the tax is collected at the
whol esal e | evel . There would be no recording of where the
fuel was sold retail. If there is nunicipal sharing, there
woul d need to be some sort of recording requirenent fromthe
di stributors.

KEVIN RI TCH E, ALASKA MJNI Cl PAL LEAGUE, JUNEAU, stated that
in the Al aska Minicipal League (AM.) policy statenent, AM
supports an increase in notor vehicle registration fees and
not or vehicle fuel taxes as |ong as:

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/ 14/ 03 1:41 PM



. Fuel tax and vehicle registration fees are used to
fund State and nmunicipal highway road operation,
mai nt enance, and i nprovenents; and

. The nmotor vehicle fuel tax and vehicle registration
fees are shared on an equitable basis between |oca
and State governnment based on the proportion of
| ocal vs. State maintained roads.

Representative Joule reiterated his concern for the snaller
village communities, which are already paying a high price
for gas. M. Rtchie acknow edged that there are nmany
peopl e that do not support a gas tax and that AML woul d |i ke
to work with them One of the advantages of a gas tax over
a sales tax is that percentage tax penalizes comobdities in
different parts of the State. One of the advantages of a
gas tax, is that it is nore equitable.

Representati ve Croft i ntroduced Amendnent #1, #23-
GH1118\H. 1, Kurtz, 4/14/03. (Copy on File).

Representative Croft stated that the anmendnent would help to
address concerns voiced by M. Ritchie. The anmendnent woul d
clarify that if revenue sharing is fully funded, then the
entire amobunt of the tax could be collected. If less is
send to municipalities, the amount that can be collected
woul d decr ease.

Representative Joul e spoke to Anendnent #2, #23-CGH1118\H. 2,
Kurtz, 4/14/03. (Copy on File).

Representative Joule noted that the anmendnent woul d exenpt
rural areas not connected to the main road system from bei ng
t axed.

Representative Joule questioned if HB 156 had received a
referral to the Ways and Means Committee for discussion and
inclusion in the statewide fiscal plan. Co-Chair WIIlians
noted that at this tinme, it had not received that referral

Co-Chair Wllians stated that HB 156 would be HELD in
Commttee for further consideration.

#HBO3
HOUSE BILL NO 93

An Act relating to boating safety; repealing secs. 3,
5 7, 9, 11, 14, 16, 18, 20, 23, 26, 27, and 30, ch.
28, SLA 2000; and providing for an effective date.

LI NDA SYLVESTER, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH,
testified that HB 93 was the reauthorization of the Boating
Safety Act. She advised that the “fornf of the bill was
confusing. In 2000, HB 108, the Al aska Boating Safety Act,

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/ 14/ 03 1:41 PM



sponsored by Representative Bill Hudson was passed. She
noted that HB 93 had been introduced at the request of the
Coast Guard.

Ms. Sylvester pointed out that the Act would elimnate the
sunset provision. Additionally, if the steady funding does
not cone through, the program would be elim nated. The
| egi sl ati on guarantees that the funds are there and that the
| anguage, which would sunset the provision, would be
el i m nat ed.

She noted that the bill had been anended in the House
Transportation Commttee. That Conmmittee elimnated the
nost controversial provision, the requirenent for non-
powered boats to be registered. The Coast CGuard is
“confortable” wth that change as is Representative
Weyhr auch. The State of Alaska would be mssing out on

about $39,000 dollars in registration fees that would be
used to regi ster non-powered boats, ten feet and over.

Representative Stoltze asked if the bill would allow for
soneone from out of State to bring a truck full of kayaks
into Alaska, creating a little sumer industry. He thought
that could cost the Coast Guard a lot of noney. Ms.
Sylvester replied that would be allowed if those boats did
not have a notor and were |l ess than ten feet |ong.

Representative Joule asked if the umaks from the northern
Al askan coastal communities would have to be registered.

Co-Chair Harris asked if it was automatic that the Coast
GQuard requires registration for any comrercially used boat.

TAPE HFC 03 - 57, Side B

M KE FOLKERTS, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), RECREATI ONAL
BOATI NG SAFETY SPECI ALI ST, U.S. COAST GUARD, commented that
the Coast Guard does support HB 93. The Coast Guard does
carry on the Boating Safety Program under #131, Title 46,
the United States Code. The goal is to encourage the states
to assune the mpjor role in providing the boater safety
m ssi on. Federal financial assistance to the state is
provided through the boating safety account, Aquatic
Resources Trust Fund, also known as the Wallop Trust Fund.
Part of the eligibility requirenent to receive the funding
was achieved in HB 108. That bill was passed wth a sunset
clause that would allow the Legislature to revisit the |aw
to assure that consistent and adequate funding was in place.
HB 93 repeals that sunset allowng the law to becone
permanent. That action will help build a |ong-term program
and reduce recreational boating fatalities.

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/ 14/ 03 1:41 PM



M. Fol kerts reiterated that the Coast Guard does support HB
93 and will maintain their relationship wwth the State of
Al aska. He added that under current law, if the boat is
over ten feet long, registration is required; however, under
federal law that is not true unless the craft is powered.

Representative Stoltze inquired why the bill was not up for
anot her sunset consideration. M. Folkerts responded that
the benefit of the repeal would nmake the |aw pernmanent. He
noted that there are a couple things wthin the |aw that
need to be fixed and that once the |aw becane pernmanent,
then those concerns could be nore inline with the federa
requi renents. He stressed that at this point, it is a “bare

bones” | aw. If the | aw does sunset, the State could | oose
all their federal funding plus the registration noney. The
federal governnent, through Title 46, is required to

transfer responsibility of the boating safety regulations to
each state.

Representative Stoltze interjected that M. Fol kerts
testinony made him unconfortable with anything nore than a
sunset. Representative Stoltze indicated that he would |ike
to maintain a certain anmount of control over the programin
order to guarantee that the State can “revisit” any

probl ens. He reiterated that he would prefer another
ext ensi on.
Representative Croft asked if the bill would be held in

Comm ttee as he had concerns with the “non-notorized” issue.
He stated that the non-notorized registration has been an
overly burdensone requirenent that frustrates people.

Co-Chair Harris referenced the fiscal note by the Departnent
of Admi nistration, pointing out the one increased part tine
position. M. Sylvester countered that the note indicates a
decrease, not an increase of one position.

Representative Stoltze requested that the Coast QGuard
provide a breakdown of their rescue costs associated with
both the non-notorized and notorized boats for the next
scheduled neeting on the |egislation. M. Folkerts
responded that he would make that information avail able.
Ms. Sylvester interjected that from evidence provided in
other commttee hearings, there is no justification to
el i m nate non-powered boats. She added that a person woul d
be just as likely to drowmm on a non-powered boat as on a

power ed boat. The comon risk factor is the “water”. It
would be a policy decision nmade by the State regarding
whether to register the small "fun" crafts.

Co-Chair Harris noted that his staff had indicated from
information supplied by the Coast Guard, that 25% of all
boating fatalities from 1991-2000 were in non-notorized

House Fi nance Committee 9 04/ 14/ 03 1:41 PM



craft. He stressed the significant inpact on the Coast
Quard rescue.

Representative Stoltze nentioned that there is grow ng
resentnment within his constituency, paying for prograns that
they do not like. He recommended that there should be sone
type of equity issue, forcing people to | ook at the val ue of
t he program

MARK JOHNSON, CH EF, COVMMUNI TY HEALTH AND EMERGENCY MEDI CAL
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, noted
that the Departnment of Health & Social Services supports the
bill. He comented that the Departnent is particularly
interested in seeing the deaths from drowning reduced.
Prior to the legislation, there were approximately 29
drownings per year; since the |legislation passed, that
nunber has been reduced to approximtely 16-21. Sone of the
noney, which Al aska has becone eligible for fromthe federa
governnent, has been used in the Enmergency Medical Services
office in comunities throughout the State for the *“Kids
Don’t Float Prograni. M. Johnson concluded that boating
safety is working statew de.

Co-Chair WIllianms asked the Departnment’s view on notorized
versus non-notorized boats. M. Johnson acknow edged t hat
sone drowni ngs have resulted in the non-notorized vehicles.
He agreed it would be a judgnent call for the Legislature to
make.

CHUCK  HOSACK, (TESTIFIED WVIA TELECONFERENCE), DEPUTY
DI RECTOR, DVISITON OF MOTOR VEH CLES, DEPARTMENT  OF
ADM NI STRATI ON, pointed out that the Division has submtted
a fiscal note indicating a decrease in the budget and a
slight decrease in revenue in dropping the requirenent to
regi ster non-notorized boats. He added that the part-tine
position should be indicated as a | oss of one position. M.
Hosack offered to answer questions regarding the program

Co-Chair WIllians stated that the bill would be HELD in
Commttee for further consideration.

#

ADJ QURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 2:42 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 10 04/ 14/ 03 1: 41 PM



